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                         Part I. Financial Information 
  
                                    ITEM 1. 
  
                               CABOT CORPORATION 
                       CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
                  Three Months Ended December 31, 1997 and 1996 
 
                 (Amounts in millions, except per share amounts) 
 
                                   UNAUDITED 
  
 
 
                                                              1997       1996 
                                                           ---------  --------- 
                                                                 
Revenues: 
  Net sales and other operating revenues.................  $   435.4  $   398.8 
  Interest and dividend income...........................        1.6        1.7 
                                                           ---------  --------- 
    Total revenues.......................................      437.0      400.5 
                                                           ---------  --------- 
Costs and expenses: 
  Cost of sales..........................................      300.2      279.7 
  Selling and administrative expenses....................       56.7       53.7 
  Research and technical service.........................       19.0       20.9 
  Interest expense.......................................       11.4        9.7 
  Other charges, net.....................................        4.4        1.8 
                                                           ---------  --------- 
    Total costs and expenses.............................      391.7      365.8 
                                                           ---------  --------- 
Income before income taxes...............................       45.3       34.7 
Provision for income taxes...............................      (16.3)     (12.5) 
Equity in net income of affiliated companies.............        3.0        4.0 
Minority interest in income..............................       (0.5)      (1.1) 
                                                           ---------  --------- 
Net income...............................................       31.5       25.1 
Dividends on preferred stock, net of tax  
  benefit of $0.5 and $0.5...............................       (0.8)      (0.8) 
                                                           ---------  --------- 
Income applicable to common shares.......................  $    30.7  $    24.3 
                                                           ---------  --------- 
                                                           ---------  --------- 
Weighted average common shares outstanding (Note D): 
  Basic..................................................       66.1       68.7 
  Diluted................................................       75.3       78.1 
 
Income per common share (Note D): 
  Basic..................................................  $    0.46  $    0.35 
                                                           ---------  --------- 
                                                           ---------  --------- 
  Diluted................................................  $    0.41  $    0.32 
                                                           ---------  --------- 
                                                           ---------  --------- 
Dividends per common share...............................  $    0.10  $    0.10 
                                                           ---------  --------- 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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                               CABOT CORPORATION 
                           CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
                     December 31, 1997 and September 30, 1997 
 
                   (Amounts in millions, except share amounts) 
 
                                     ASSETS 
 
 
 
                                                                                        
                                                                                       DECEMBER 31   SEPTEMBER 30 
                                                                                           1997          1997 
                                                                                       ------------  ------------ 
                                                                                       (UNAUDITED) 
                                                                                                
 
Current assets: 
  Cash and cash equivalents.........................................................   $     37.9    $     39.2 
  Accounts and notes receivable (net of reserve for doubtful  
    accounts of $5.2 and $5.6)......................................................        320.2         288.6 
 
 Inventories: 
    Raw materials...................................................................         73.4          81.1 
    Work in process.................................................................         60.8          59.8 
    Finished goods..................................................................         86.1          64.1 
    Other...........................................................................         42.2          41.9 
                                                                                       ------------  ------------ 
      Total inventories.............................................................        262.5         246.9 
  Prepaid expenses..................................................................         34.4          21.3 
  Deferred income taxes.............................................................         16.7          15.2 
                                                                                       ------------  ------------ 
Total current assets................................................................        671.7         611.2 
                                                                                       ------------  ------------ 
Investments: 
  Equity............................................................................         76.8          86.1 
  Other.............................................................................        176.3         146.6 
                                                                                       ------------  ------------ 
      Total investments.............................................................        253.1         232.7 
                                                                                       ------------  ------------ 
Property, plant and equipment.......................................................      1,787.8       1,759.8 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization...........................................       (856.2)       (837.5) 
                                                                                       ------------  ------------ 
  Net property, plant and equipment.................................................        931.6         922.3 
                                                                                       ------------  ------------ 
Other assets: 
  Intangible assets, net of amortization............................................         46.5          39.1 
  Deferred income taxes.............................................................          4.7           4.2 
  Other assets......................................................................         17.1          14.1 
                                                                                       ------------  ------------ 
      Total other assets............................................................         68.3          57.4 
                                                                                       ------------  ------------ 
Total assets........................................................................   $  1,924.7    $  1,823.6 
                                                                                       ------------  ------------ 
                                                                                       ------------  ------------ 
 
  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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                               CABOT CORPORATION 
                           CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
                     December 31, 1997 and September 30, 1997 
 
                   (Amounts in millions, except share amounts) 
 
                       LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
  
 
 
                                                                                       DECEMBER 31   SEPTEMBER 30 
                                                                                           1997          1997 
                                                                                       ------------  ------------ 
                                                                                       (UNAUDITED) 
                                                                                                
Current liabilities: 
  Notes payable to banks...........................................................   $    352.8    $    200.8 
  Current portion of long-term debt................................................         10.9         115.0 
  Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.........................................        216.5         223.9 
  U.S. and foreign income taxes payable............................................          8.7           0.7 
  Deferred income taxes............................................................          1.0           1.0 
                                                                                      ------------  ------------ 
      Total current liabilities....................................................        589.9         541.4 
                                                                                       ------------  ------------ 
Long-term debt.....................................................................        336.2         285.5 
Deferred income taxes..............................................................        109.5          99.2 
Other liabilities..................................................................        151.0         146.9 
 
Commitments and contingencies (Note C).............................................          --            -- 
 
Minority interest..................................................................         22.6          22.8 
 
Stockholders' Equity (Note E): 
 
Preferred Stock: 
  Authorized: 2,000,000 shares of $1 par value 
  Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock 
    Issued and outstanding: none 
  Series B ESOP Convertible Preferred Stock 7.75% Cumulative 
    Issued: 75,336 shares (aggregate redemption value of $68.6 
    and $69.4).....................................................................          75.3          75.3 
Less cost of preferred treasury stock..............................................         (10.0)         (9.4) 
 
Common stock: 
  Authorized: 200,000,000 shares of $1 par value................................... 
  Issued: 135,549,936 shares.......................................................          135.5         135.5 
 
Additional paid-in capital.........................................................           38.6          39.3 
 
Retained earnings..................................................................         1,262.1       1,238.2 
 
Less cost of common treasury stock 
  (including unearned compensation amounts of $14.2 and $18.3).....................          (763.4)       (723.7) 
 
Deferred employee benefits.........................................................           (62.1)        (62.5) 
 
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities...................................           69.9          53.9 
 
Foreign currency translation adjustments...........................................          (30.4)        (18.8) 
                                                                                         ------------  ------------ 
Total stockholders' equity.........................................................          715.5         727.8 
                                                                                       ------------  ------------ 
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity.........................................     $  1,924.7    $  1,823.6 
                                                                                       ------------  ------------ 
                                                                                       ------------  ------------ 
 
  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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                                   CABOT CORPORATION 
                        CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
                    Three Months Ended December 31, 1997 and 1996 
 
                                  (Amounts in millions) 
 
                                        UNAUDITED 
  
 
 
                                                                                                    1997       1996 
                                                                                                  ---------  --------- 
                                                                                                        
Cash flows from operating activities: 
 
Net income........................................................................................ $   31.5  $    25.1 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by operating activities: 
  Depreciation and amortization...................................................................     29.5       27.0 
  Deferred tax provision (benefit)................................................................     (0.2)      (0.5) 
  Equity in net income of affiliated companies, net of dividends received.........................     (1.0)      (1.6) 
  Other, net......................................................................................      2.8        2.2 
 
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of the effect of acquisitions and the 
consolidation of equity affiliates: 
  Increase in accounts receivable.................................................................    (33.5)     (11.6) 
  Increase in inventory...........................................................................    (15.1)     (13.6) 
  Decrease in accounts payable and accruals.......................................................     (8.5)     (19.3) 
  Increase in prepayments and intangible assets...................................................    (17.1)      (3.1) 
  Increase (decrease) in income taxes payable.....................................................      9.7       (5.7) 
  Other, net......................................................................................      4.2        2.0 
                                                                                                    ---------  --------- 
Cash provided by operating activities.............................................................      2.3        0.9 
                                                                                                    ---------  --------- 
Cash flows from investing activities: 
 
  Additions to property, plant and equipment......................................................    (30.6)     (58.6) 
  Proceeds on sale of business....................................................................      --        35.0 
  Investments and acquisitions....................................................................    (24.1)      (4.0) 
  Other...........................................................................................      2.4        0.1 
                                                                                                     --------  --------- 
      Cash used by investing activities...........................................................    (52.3)     (27.5) 
                                                                                                     ---------  --------- 
Cash flows from financing activities: 
 
  Proceeds from long-term debt....................................................................     62.6        -- 
  Repayments of long-term debt....................................................................   (114.8)      (3.7) 
  Increase in short-term debt.....................................................................    152.7       59.7 
  Purchases of treasury stock.....................................................................    (45.0)     (38.2) 
  Sales and issuances of treasury stock...........................................................      1.3        1.4 
  Cash dividends paid to stockholders.............................................................     (7.6)      (8.0) 
                                                                                                    ---------  --------- 
    Cash provided by financing activities.........................................................     49.2       11.2 
                                                                                                    ---------  --------- 
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash...........................................................     (0.5)      (0.4) 
                                                                                                    ----------  --------- 
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents.............................................................     (1.3)     (15.8) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period..................................................     39.2       58.1 
                                                                                                    ---------  --------- 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period........................................................  $  37.9    $   42.3 
                                                                                                    ---------  --------- 
                                                                                                    ---------  --------- 
 
 
  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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                              CABOT CORPORATION 
                  NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                              December 31, 1997 
  
A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
  
   PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION 
  
   The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Cabot  
Corporation and majority-owned and controlled U.S. and non-U.S. subsidiaries.  
Investments in majority-owned affiliates where control does not exist and  
investments in 20 percent to 50 percent-owned affiliates are accounted for on  
the equity method. Intercompany transactions have been eliminated. 
 
   The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the  
requirements of Form 10-Q and consequently do not include all disclosures  
required by Form 10-K. Additional information may be obtained by referring to  
the Company's Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 1997. 
  
   The financial information submitted herewith is unaudited and reflects all  
adjustments which are, in the opinion of management, necessary to provide a  
fair statement of the results for the interim periods ended December 31, 1997  
and 1996. All such adjustments are of a normal recurring nature. The results  
for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results to be  
expected for the fiscal year. 
 
B. ACQUISITIONS 
 
   Effective October 1, 1997 the Company acquired the remaining interest  
in its fumed silica joint venture in Rheinfelden, Germany for approximately  
$20 million. The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of  
accounting. Accordingly, a portion of the purchase price was allocated to the  
net assets acquired based on their estimated fair values. The balance of the  
purchase price, approximately $8 million, was recorded as excess of purchase  
price over fair value of net assets acquired (goodwill), and is being  
amortized over 15 years on a straight-line basis. 
 
C. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
  
   The Company has various lawsuits, claims and contingent liabilities. In  
the opinion of the Company, although final disposition of all of its suits  
and claims may impact the Company's financial statements in a particular  
period, they should not, in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on  
the Company's financial position. 
  
D. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) 
 
   In February 1997, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued  
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, "Earnings Per Share"  
(SFAS 128). SFAS 128 simplifies the standard for computing earnings per  
share. It replaces the presentation of primary EPS with a presentation of  
basic EPS. It also requires dual presentation of basic and diluted EPS on the  
face of the income statement for all entities with complex capital structures  
and requires a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator of the basic  
EPS computation to the numerator and denominator of the diluted EPS  
computation.  
 
   During the quarter ended December 31, 1997 the Company adopted SFAS  
128. As a result, primary and fully diluted earnings per share have been  
replaced by basic and diluted earnings per share. Amounts related to prior  
periods have been restated to reflect the new requirement. 
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                              CABOT CORPORATION 
             NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 
                              December 31, 1997 
                                  UNAUDITED 
 
 
D. EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 
 
                     Reconciliation of Income and Shares 
                Three Months Ended December 31, 1997 and 1996  
 
               (Amounts in millions, except per share amounts) 
  
 
 
                                                                                                     1997       1996 
                                                                                                   ---------  --------- 
                                                                                                         
Basic EPS Computation 
 
Net Income (Numerator)...........................................................................  $    31.5  $    25.1 
Less: Dividends on preferred stock...............................................................       (0.8)      (0.8) 
                                                                                                   ---------  --------- 
Income available to common shares................................................................  $    30.7  $    24.3 
                                                                                                   ---------  --------- 
                                                                                                   ---------  --------- 
 
Shares of common stock at October 1 (Denominator)................................................       69.5       71.6 
Net weighted shares of treasury stock purchased..................................................       (1.0)      (0.7) 
Contingently issuable shares.....................................................................       (2.4)      (2.2) 
                                                                                                   ---------  --------- 
Weighted average shares..........................................................................       66.1       68.7 
                                                                                                   ---------  --------- 
                                                                                                   ---------  --------- 
 
Basic EPS........................................................................................  $    0.46  $    0.35 
                                                                                                   ---------  --------- 
                                                                                                   ---------  --------- 
 
Diluted EPS Calculation 
 
Income available to common shares (Numerator)....................................................  $    30.7  $    24.3 
Plus: Dividends on preferred stock...............................................................        0.8        0.8 
      Income impact of assumed conversion of preferred stock.....................................       (0.4)      (0.5) 
                                                                                                   ---------  --------- 
Income available to common shares + assumed conversions..........................................  $    31.1  $    24.6 
                                                                                                   ---------  --------- 
                                                                                                   ---------  --------- 
Shares of common stock at October 1 (Denominator)................................................       69.5       71.6 
Net weighted shares of treasury stock purchased..................................................       (1.0)      (0.7) 
Convertible preferred stock......................................................................        6.0        6.1 
Equity incentive awards..........................................................................        0.8        1.1 
                                                                                                   ---------  --------- 
Adjusted weighted average shares.................................................................       75.3       78.1 
                                                                                                   ---------  --------- 
                                                                                                   ---------  --------- 
 
Diluted EPS.......................................................................................  $    0.41  $    0.32 
                                                                                                   ---------  --------- 
                                                                                                   ---------  --------- 
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                                 CABOT CORPORATION 
                 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 
                                December 31, 1997 
                                    UNAUDITED 
 
E. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
  
    The following table summarizes the changes in stockholders' equity for the 
three months ended December 31, 1997. 
                   (Amounts in millions, except share amounts) 
 
 
 
                                                                                  PREFERRED STOCK             PREFERRED 
                                                                              ------------------------      TREASURY STOCK 
                                                                                SHARES                  ---------------------- 
                                                                                ISSUED        VALUE       SHARES       COST 
                                                                              -----------     -----     -----------  --------- 
                                                                                                          
Balance at September 30, 1997...............................................      75,336    $    75.3        6,956   $    (9.4) 
Net income.................................................................. 
Common stock dividends paid................................................. 
Issuance of treasury stock under employee compensation plans................ 
Purchase of treasury stock--common.......................................... 
Purchase of treasury stock--preferred.......................................                                   264        (0.6) 
Sale of treasury stock to Cabot Retirement Incentive Savings Plan........... 
Preferred stock dividends paid to Employee Stock Ownership Plan, net of 
  tax....................................................................... 
Principal payment by Employee Stock Ownership Plan under guaranteed loan.... 
Amortization of unearned compensation....................................... 
Unrealized gain, net of deferred tax........................................ 
Foreign currency translation adjustments.................................... 
                                                                              -----------       -----        -----   --------- 
Balance at December 31, 1997................................................      75,336    $    75.3        7,220   $   (10.0) 
                                                                              -----------       -----        -----   --------- 
                                                                              -----------       -----        -----   --------- 
 
 
 
 
  
                                                                                  COMMON STOCK 
                                                                              ---------------------   ADDITIONAL 
                                                                                SHARES                  PAID-IN      RETAINED 
                                                                                ISSUED      VALUE       CAPITAL      EARNINGS 
                                                                              ----------  ---------  -------------  ----------- 
                                                                                                          
Balance at September 30, 1997...............................................  135,549,936 $   135.5    $    39.3     $ 1,238.2 
Net income..................................................................                                              31.5 
Common stock dividends paid.................................................                                              (6.8) 
Issuance of treasury stock under employee compensation plans................                                (1.3) 
Purchase of treasury stock--common.......................................... 
Purchase of treasury stock--preferred....................................... 
Sale of treasury stock to Cabot Retirement Incentive Savings Plan...........                                 0.6 
Preferred stock dividends paid to Employee Stock Ownership Plan, net of 
  tax.......................................................................                                              (0.8) 
Principal payment by Employee Stock Ownership Plan under guaranteed loan.... 
Amortization of unearned compensation....................................... 
Unrealized gain, net of deferred tax........................................ 
Foreign currency translation adjustments.................................... 
                                                                              ----------  ---------        -----    ----------- 
Balance at December 31, 1997................................................  135,549,936 $   135.5    $    38.6     $ 1,262.1 
                                                                              ----------  ---------        -----    ----------- 
                                                                              ----------  ---------        -----    ----------- 
 
 
 
 
  
                                                                                     COMMON 
                                                                                 TREASURY STOCK                       DEFERRED 
                                                                              --------------------     UNEARNED       EMPLOYEE 
                                                                               SHARES      COST      COMPENSATION     BENEFITS 
                                                                              ---------  ---------  ---------------  ----------- 
                                                                                                          
Balance at September 30, 1997...............................................  66,067,426 $  (705.4)    $   (18.3)     $   (62.5) 
Net income.................................................................. 
Common stock dividends paid.................................................        
Issuance of treasury stock under employee compensation plans................    (22,590)       0.2           1.3 
Purchase of treasury stock--common..........................................  1,722,294      (44.4) 
Purchase of treasury stock--preferred....................................... 
Sale of treasury stock to Cabot Retirement Incentive Savings Plan...........    (36,000)       0.4 
Preferred stock dividends paid to Employee Stock Ownership Plan, net of 
  tax....................................................................... 
Principal payment by Employee Stock Ownership Plan under guaranteed loan....                                                0.4 
Amortization of unearned compensation.......................................                                 2.8 
Unrealized gain, net of deferred tax........................................ 
Foreign currency translation adjustments.................................... 
                                                                              ---------  ---------        ------     ----------- 
Balance at December 31, 1997................................................  67,731,130 $  (749.2)    $   (14.2)     $   (62.1) 
                                                                              ---------  ---------        ------     ----------- 
                                                                              ---------  ---------        ------     ----------- 
 



 
 
 
  
                                                                               UNREALIZED       FOREIGN 
                                                                                GAIN ON         CURRENCY         TOTAL 
                                                                              AVAILABLE FOR   TRANSLATION   STOCKHOLDERS' 
                                                                             SALE SECURITIES  ADJUSTMENTS       EQUITY 
                                                                             ---------------  -------------  ------------- 
                                                                                                      
 
Balance at September 30, 1997...............................................    $    53.9      $   (18.8)     $   727.8 
Net income..................................................................                                       31.5 
Common stock dividends paid.................................................                                       (6.8) 
Issuance of treasury stock under employee compensation plans................                                        0.2 
Purchase of treasury stock--common..........................................                                      (44.4) 
Purchase of treasury stock--preferred.......................................                                       (0.6) 
Sale of treasury stock to Cabot Retirement Incentive Savings Plan...........                                        1.0 
Preferred stock dividends paid to Employee Stock Ownership Plan, net of 
  tax.......................................................................                                       (0.8) 
Principal payment by Employee Stock Ownership Plan under guaranteed loan....                                        0.4 
Amortization of unearned compensation.......................................                                        2.8 
Unrealized gain, net of deferred tax........................................         16.0                          16.0 
Foreign currency translation adjustments....................................                       (11.6)         (11.6) 
                                                                                    -----         ------         ------ 
Balance at December 31, 1997................................................    $    69.9      $   (30.4)     $   715.5 
                                                                                    -----         ------         ------ 
                                                                                    -----         ------         ------ 
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                               CABOT CORPORATION 
  
ITEM 2.             MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
                FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
  
I. Results of Operations 
 
   Sales and operating profit by industry segment are shown in the accompanying 
table on page 12. 
 
Three Months Ended December 31, 1997 versus 
Three Months Ended December 31, 1996 
 
   Net income for the first quarter of fiscal year 1998 was $31.5 million  
($0.41 per diluted common share), compared to $25.1 million ($0.32 per  
diluted common share) in the same quarter a year ago. Net sales and other  
operating revenues increased 9% to $435.4 million from last year's $398.8  
million. Operating profit was $62.9 million for the quarter compared to $50.4  
million in the same quarter a year ago. The increase in earnings is primarily  
due to greater volumes in each of the Company's specialty chemicals and  
materials businesses and higher prices in the liquefied natural gas (LNG)  
business, partially offset by the effects of lower year-to-year carbon black  
prices. 
 
   In the Company's specialty chemicals and materials businesses, sales for  
the first quarter of fiscal year 1998 increased 7% to $362.6 million from  
$340.2 million last year, on 16% greater volumes. Operating profit increased  
12% to $51.5 million from $45.9 million in the same quarter last year. For  
the quarter, carbon black and fumed silica volumes were up 10% and 4%,  
respectively, from the same quarter last year. The performance materials  
business' revenues increased 36% from the prior year's first quarter. Also,  
the plastics business achieved significantly greater volumes for the first  
quarter, compared to a weak first quarter last year. 
 
   The Company's carbon black business reported a modest earnings increase.  
Greater year-to-year carbon black volumes, lower plant operating costs and  
lower development costs more than offset the effects of the stronger U.S.  
dollar and lower selling prices, which were down 6% on average. The business  
experienced $8 million of negative earnings effect from the strengthened U.S.  
dollar. Of this amount, $3 million was specifically related to losses  
associated with the Indonesian rupiah. 
 
   The Company's performance materials business (CPM), which manufactures  
high grade tantalum and other performance materials products, benefited from  
a continued recovery in the U.S. electronics market since the second half of  
fiscal 1997. Greater volumes and reduced operating costs more than offset the  
effect of slightly lower year-to-year selling prices. The business benefited  
from a cost reduction program undertaken in 1997, but this favorable earnings  
effect was somewhat offset by continued investments in new product  
development. CPM contributed $0.03 more per share to Cabot's  
earnings in the first quarter of 1998 than it contributed in the first quarter 
of 1997.  
 
   The Company's fumed silica business experienced a 4% increase in global 
volumes in the first quarter versus last year's first quarter. For the  
quarter, the business also reported higher selling prices and higher local  
currency earnings compared with last year's first quarter. However, a $2  
million negative effect from a strengthened U.S. dollar resulted in an  
overall $1 million unfavorable earnings comparison to last year's first  
quarter. 
 
   Research and development and marketing costs associated with new products  
was $23.6 million for the first quarter of 1998 versus $25.4 million for last  
year's first quarter. The Company continues to pursue, and is encouraged by  
progress in, the development of several of its new products and new  
businesses.  
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                               CABOT CORPORATION 
  
                     Management's Discussion and Analysis of 
           Financial Condition and Results of Operations (Continued) 
  
I. Results of Operations (continued) 
 
The Company's objective of developing higher value, differentiated  
products and creating new businesses is central to its strategy for  
generating earnings growth. 
 
   Sales for the Company's energy business for the first quarter increased  
24% to $72.8 million from $58.6 million for the same quarter a year ago. The  
energy business' operating profit was $11.4 million, compared with $4.5  
million in the first quarter of fiscal year 1997. The increase in earnings is  
attributable to higher year-to-year natural gas prices and higher revenues  
from firm sales commitments. Expanded firm commitments were made possible by  
an increased availability of LNG this year. 
 
II. Cash Flows and Liquidity 
 
   During the first three months of fiscal year 1998, the Company's operating  
activities provided $2.3 million of cash compared to $0.9 million last year.  
As in the first quarter of fiscal year 1997, seasonal working capital  
increases during the first quarter of fiscal year 1998 largely offset the  
cash generated from profits. 
 
   Capital expenditures and acquisitions for the first three months of the  
year were $55 million. The Company plans to make approximately $250 million  
of capital expenditures during the fiscal year. The major components of the  
1998 capital program include new business expansion, the Company's equity  
share of a natural gas liquefaction project in Trinidad, refurbishment of the  
Company's LNG tanker, capacity expansion in the Company's fumed silica  
business, and normal plant operating capital projects.  
 
   On May 9, 1997, the Company's Board of Directors authorized the repurchase  
of 4 million shares of its common stock. During the first three months of  
fiscal year 1998, the Company repurchased approximately 1.7 million shares of  
common stock. At December 31, 1997, approximately 1.7 million shares remained  
available for repurchase under the May 1997 authorization. 
  
   Effective October 1, 1997, the Company acquired the remaining interest  
in its fumed silica joint venture in Rheinfelden, Germany. The purchase price  
was approximately $20 million. The Company's management expects this  
acquisition to contribute to earnings immediately. 
 
   On October 21, 1997, the Company issued $50 million of medium-term notes.  
The notes mature as follows: $25 million matures in 30 years; and $25 million  
matures in 30 years with a one-time put option 7 years from issuance. The  
notes have a weighted average interest rate of 7.1%. Proceeds from the  
issuance were used to reduce short-term debt. The Company's ratio of total  
debt (including short-term debt net of cash) to capital increased from 43% at  
September 30, 1997 to 47% at the end of the first quarter of fiscal 1998. 
 
   The Company maintains a revolving credit agreement. Under the credit  
agreement, the Company may borrow up to $300 million at floating rates. The  
facility is available through January 3, 2002. Management expects cash  
from operations and present financing arrangements, including the Company's  
unused line of credit, to be sufficient to meet the Company's cash  
requirements for the foreseeable future. At December 31, 1997, the Company  
had no amounts outstanding under this credit agreement. 
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                               CABOT CORPORATION 
  
                     Management's Discussion and Analysis of 
           Financial Condition and Results of Operations (Continued) 
 
                 (Amounts in millions, except per share amounts) 
  
                                   UNAUDITED 
  
 
 
                                                                          THREE MONTHS ENDED 
                                                                       ------------------------ 
                                                                        12/31/97     12/31/96 
                                                                       -----------  ----------- 
                                                                               
Industry Segment Data 
 
Net Sales: 
Specialty chemicals and materials....................................   $   362.6    $   340.2 
Energy...............................................................        72.8         58.6 
                                                                       -----------  ----------- 
  Net sales..........................................................   $   435.4    $   398.8 
                                                                       -----------  ----------- 
                                                                       -----------  ----------- 
Operating profit: 
Specialty chemicals and materials....................................   $    51.5    $    45.9 
Energy...............................................................        11.4          4.5 
                                                                       -----------  ----------- 
  Total operating profit.............................................        62.9         50.4 
Interest expense.....................................................       (11.4)        (9.7) 
General corporate/other expenses.....................................        (6.2)        (6.0) 
                                                                       -----------  ----------- 
Income before income taxes...........................................        45.3         34.7 
Provision for income taxes...........................................       (16.3)       (12.5) 
Equity in net income of affiliated companies.........................         3.0          4.0 
Minority interest in income..........................................        (0.5)        (1.1) 
                                                                       -----------  ----------- 
Net income...........................................................        31.5         25.1 
Dividends on preferred stock.........................................        (0.8)        (0.8) 
                                                                       -----------  ----------- 
Income applicable to common shares...................................   $    30.7    $    24.3 
                                                                       -----------  ----------- 
                                                                       -----------  ----------- 
Income per common share: 
  Basic..............................................................   $    0.46    $    0.35 
                                                                       -----------  ----------- 
                                                                       -----------  ----------- 
  Diluted............................................................   $    0.41    $    0.32 
                                                                       -----------  ----------- 
                                                                       -----------  ----------- 
 
 
   Forward Looking Information: Management's Discussion and Analysis above  
contains forward-looking remarks. Actual results may differ materially from  
the results anticipated in the statements included herein due to a variety of  
factors including market supply and demand conditions, currency exchange  
rates, costs of raw materials, demand for our customers' products, and  
competitors' reactions to market conditions. Timely commercialization of  
products under development by the Company may be disrupted or delayed by  
technical difficulties, market acceptance, competitors' new products as well  
as difficulties in moving from the experimental stage to the production stage. 
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                            PART II.  Other Information 
  
ITEM 6. EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K 
  
    (a) Exhibits 
  
    The exhibit numbers in the following list correspond to the number  
    assigned to such exhibits in the Exhibit Table of Item 601 of Regulation  
    S-K: 
  
 
 
EXHIBIT 
NUMBER     DESCRIPTION 
- --------   ----------- 
         
  
10(a)      Cabot Corporation Senior Management Severance Protection Plan,  
           effective January 9, 1998, filed herewith. 
           
10(b)      Cabot Corporation Key Employee Severance Protection Plan,  
           effective January 9, 1998, filed herewith. 
           
11         Statement Regarding Computation of Per Share Earnings, filed  
           herewith. 
           
12         Statement Regarding Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed  
           Charges, filed herewith. 
           
27         Financial Data Schedule, filed herewith. (Not included with  
           printed copy of the Form 10-Q.) 
 
  
  
    (b) Reports on Form 8-K 
  
    No report on Form 8-K was filed by the Company during the three months  
    ended December 31, 1997. 
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                                   SIGNATURES 
  
    Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the 
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the 
undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 
 
                                       CABOT CORPORATION  
 
 
 
 
Date: February 13, 1998               /s/ Robert L. Culver  
                                      ---------------------------- 
                                      Robert L. Culver  
                                      Executive Vice President and 
                                      Chief Financial Officer  
 
 
 
Date: February 13, 1998               /s/ William T. Anderson 
                                      ---------------------------- 
                                      William T. Anderson  
                                      Controller  
                                      (Chief Accounting Officer) 
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                                                                  Exhibit 10(a) 
                                           
                                 CABOT CORPORATION 
                    SENIOR MANAGEMENT SEVERANCE PROTECTION PLAN 
           
          WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the "Board") of Cabot Corporation, a 
Delaware corporation (the "Company"), recognizes that the threat of an 
unsolicited takeover or other change in control of the Company may occur which 
can result in significant distractions of its key personnel because of the 
uncertainties inherent in such a situation; and 
 
          WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is essential and in the best 
interest of the Company and its stockholders to be able to retain the services 
of its key personnel in the event of a threat of a change in control of the 
Company, and following any change in control, to ensure their continued 
dedication and efforts in any such event without undue concern for their 
personal financial and employment security. 
 
          NOW, THEREFORE, in order to fulfill the above purposes, the following 
plan has been developed and is hereby adopted. 
 
 
                                     ARTICLE I 
 
                               ESTABLISHMENT OF PLAN 
 
          As of the Effective Date, the Company hereby establishes the Cabot 
Corporation Senior Management Severance Protection Plan (the "Plan") as set 
forth in this document. 
 
 
                                     ARTICLE II 
 
                                    DEFINITIONS 
 
          As used herein, the following words and phrases shall have the 
following respective meanings unless the context clearly indicates otherwise. 
 
          2.1 "Accrued Compensation" means an amount which shall include all  
amounts earned, accrued or otherwise payable to a Participant as of the  
Participant's Termination Date but not paid as of such Termination Date  
including (i) base salary, (ii) reimbursement for reasonable and necessary  
expenses incurred by the Participant on behalf of the Company during the  
period ending on the Termination Date, (iii) vacation pay, and (iv) bonuses  
and incentive compensation. 
 



 
 
          2.2  "Affiliate" means with respect to any person or entity, any  
entity, directly or indirectly, controlled by, controlling or under common  
control with such person or entity.   
 
          2.3  "Base Salary" means a Participant's annualized base salary 
(including any portion that the Participant may have elected to defer), 
calculated at the greater of the rate in effect (i) immediately prior to a 
Change in Control or (ii) as of the Participant's Termination Date.  
 
          2.4  "Board" means the Board of Directors of Cabot Corporation. 
 
          2.5  "Bonus Amount" means an amount equal to the greater of (A) 
Participant's target bonus amount (including any portion that the Participant 
may have elected to defer), if any, under all Short-Term Incentive Plans for the 
fiscal year in which the Change in Control occurs or the fiscal year in which 
the Participant's Termination Date occurs, whichever is greater or (B) the 
highest bonus amount paid or payable to the Participant (including any portion 
that the Participant may have elected to defer) under all Short-Term Incentive 
Plans in respect of any of the three fiscal years preceding the fiscal year in 
which the Change in Control occurs. 
 
          2.6  "Cause" means (a) the willful and continued refusal by the 
Participant to perform substantially his or her reasonably assigned duties with 
the Company (other than any such failure resulting from his or her physical or 
mental incapacity or any such actual or anticipated failure after the issuance 
of a Notice of Termination by the Participant for Good Reason) after a written 
demand for substantial performance is delivered to the Participant by the Board, 
which demand specifically identifies the manner in which the Board believes that 
the Participant has not substantially performed his or her duties, or (b) the 
willful engaging by the Participant in conduct which is demonstrably and 
materially injurious to the Company, monetarily or otherwise.  For purposes of 
this definition (i) no act, or failure to act, on the Participant's part shall 
be deemed "willful" unless done, or omitted to be done, by the Participant not 
in good faith and without reasonable belief that his or her action or omission 
was in the best interest of the Company and (ii) good faith errors in judgment 
by the Participant shall not constitute Cause or be considered in any 
determination of whether Cause exists. 
 
          2.7  "Change in Control" means: 
 
               (a)  An acquisition of any voting securities of the Company (the 
"Voting Securities") by any "Person" as the term person is used for purposes of 
Section 13(d) or 14(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the 
"Exchange Act"), immediately after which such Person has "Beneficial Ownership" 
(within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 promulgated under the Exchange Act) together 
with all affiliates and associates (as such terms are used in Rule 12b-2 of the 
General Rules and Regulations under the Exchange Act) of such person, directly 
or indirectly, of securities of the  
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Company representing thirty-five percent (35%) or more of the combined voting 
power of the Company's then outstanding Voting Securities; provided, however, in 
determining whether a Change in Control has occurred, Voting Securities which 
are acquired in a "Non-Control Acquisition" (as hereinafter defined) shall not 
constitute an acquisition which would cause a Change in Control.  A "Non-Control 
Acquisition" shall mean an acquisition (i) by an employee benefit plan (or a 
trust forming a part thereof) maintained (A) by the Company or (B) by any 
corporation or other Person of which a majority of its voting power or its 
voting equity securities or equity interest is owned, directly or indirectly, by 
the Company (for purposes of this definition, a "Subsidiary"), (ii) by the 
Company or its Subsidiaries or (iii) directly from the Company (A) by an 
underwriter in connection with an underwritten public offering or private 
placement, (B) of non-voting convertible debt or non-voting convertible 
preferred stock, in either case, until converted into Voting Securities or (C) 
by a Person who, in connection with such acquisition, enters into a standstill 
agreement with Company with a duration of at least two years and pursuant to 
which such Person agrees to vote the acquired securities on any matter either at 
the direction of the Board or in the same proportion as the Company's other 
stockholders vote on the matter; provided, however, that the expiration of the 
standstill agreement shall constitute an acquisition of the Voting Securities 
then Beneficially Owned by such Person. 
 
               (b)  During any period of two years or less beginning on or after 
January 1, 1998, individuals who at the beginning of such period are members of 
the Board (the "Incumbent Board"), cease for any reason to constitute a majority 
of the members of the Board; provided, however, that if the election, or 
nomination for election by the Company's common stockholders, of any new 
director (other than a director designated by a person who has entered into an 
agreement with the Company to effect a transaction described in clause (d) of 
this definition) was approved by a vote of at least two-thirds of the Incumbent 
Board, such new director shall, for purposes of this Plan, be considered as a 
member of the Incumbent Board; provided further, however, that no individual 
shall be considered a member of the Incumbent Board if such individual initially 
assumed office through either an actual or threatened "Election Contest" (as 
described in Rule 14a-11 promulgated under the Exchange Act) or other actual or 
threatened solicitation of proxies or consents by or on behalf of a Person other 
than the Board (a "Proxy Contest") including by reason of any agreement intended 
to avoid or settle any Election Contest or Proxy Contest; or  
 
               (c)  At any duly conducted election of directors at a special or 
annual meeting of stockholders of the Company, (a) two (2) or more nominees who 
are both: (i) nominees of, and endorsed by, the Company and (ii) not employees 
of the Company or any Affiliate of the Company at the time of such election are 
not elected to serve as directors, and (b) any person not a nominee of, and 
endorsed by, the Company is so elected to serve as a director of the Company. 
 
 
                                       3 



 
 
               (d)  Approval by stockholders of the Company of: 
 
                    (i)  A merger, consolidation or reorganization involving the 
          Company, unless such merger, consolidation or reorganization is a 
          "Non-Control Transaction."  A "Non-Control Transaction" shall mean a 
          merger, consolidation or reorganization of the Company where: 
 
                         (A)  the stockholders of the Company, immediately  
               before such merger, consolidation or reorganization, own directly 
               or indirectly immediately following such merger, consolidation  
               or reorganization, at least sixty-five percent (65%) of the  
               combined voting power of the outstanding voting securities of  
               the corporation resulting from such merger or consolidation or  
               reorganization (the "Surviving Corporation") in substantially  
               the same proportion as their ownership of the Voting Securities 
               immediately before such merger, consolidation or reorganization, 
 
                         (B)  the individuals who were members of the Incumbent  
               Board immediately prior to the execution of the agreement  
               providing for such merger, consolidation or reorganization 
               constitute at least two-thirds of the members of the board of  
               directors of the Surviving Corporation, or a corporation  
               beneficially directly or indirectly owning a majority of the 
               Voting Securities of the Surviving Corporation, and 
 
                         (C)  no Person other than (i) the Company, (ii) any  
               Subsidiary, or (iii) any employee benefit plan (or any trust  
               forming a part thereof) maintained by the Company, the Surviving 
               Corporation, or any Subsidiary, acquires Beneficial Ownership of  
               thirty-five percent (35%) or more of the combined voting power  
               of the Surviving Corporation's then outstanding voting  
               securities. 
 
                   (ii)  A complete liquidation or dissolution of the Company; 
               or 
 
                   (iii) An agreement for the sale or other disposition of all 
               or substantially all of the assets of the Company to any Person 
               (other than a transfer to a Subsidiary). 
 
          Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Change in Control shall not be deemed 
to occur solely because any Person (the "Subject Person") acquired Beneficial 
Ownership of more than the permitted amount of the then outstanding Voting 
Securities as a result of the acquisition of Voting Securities by the Company 
which, by reducing the number of Voting Securities then outstanding, increases 
the percentage of shares  
 
 
                                       4 



 
 
Beneficially Owned by the Subject Person, provided that if a Change in Control 
would occur (but for the operation of this sentence) as a result of the 
acquisition of Voting Securities by the Company, and after such share 
acquisition by the Company, the Subject Person becomes the Beneficial Owner of 
any additional Voting Securities which increases the percentage of the then 
outstanding Voting Securities Beneficially Owned by the Subject Person, then a 
Change in Control shall occur. 
 
          Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, if the 
employment of a Participant is terminated (i) at the request of a third party 
who has indicated an intention or taken steps reasonably calculated to effect a 
Change in Control and who effectuates a Change in Control or (ii) otherwise in 
connection with, or in anticipation of, a Change in Control which actually 
occurs, then for purposes of this Plan the date of a Change in Control with 
respect to that Participant shall be deemed to be the date immediately prior to 
the Participant's Termination Date.  
 
          2.8  "Company" means Cabot Corporation, a Delaware corporation. 
 
          2.9  "Compensation Committee" means the Compensation Committee of the 
Board as such committee may be constituted from time to time. 
 
          2.10 "Disability" shall occur if, as a result of a Participant's 
physical or mental incapacity due to illness, accident or otherwise, a 
Participant shall be unable to perform his or her duties with the Company. 
 
          2.11 "Effective Date" means the date the Plan is approved by the Board 
or such other date as the Board shall designate in its resolution approving the 
Plan. 
 
          2.12 "Eligible Employee" means each employee of the Company (i) who is 
elected by the Board to the position, and is serving in the position, of 
Chairman, Vice Chairman, President or Vice President (including Senior Vice 
President or Executive Vice President) or (ii) who is designated as an Eligible 
Employee by the Compensation Committee. 
 
          2.13 "Excluded Termination" has the meaning ascribed to it in 
Section 4.1(b). 
 
          2.14 "Good Reason" means the occurrence after a Change in Control of 
any of the following events or conditions: 
 
               (a)  a change in the Participant's status, title, position or 
responsibilities (including reporting responsibilities) which, in the 
Participant's reasonable judgment, represents an adverse change from his status, 
title, position or responsibilities as in effect immediately prior thereto (it 
being understood that such an adverse change will be deemed to have occurred for 
any officer of the Company  
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designated by the Board as an "executive officer" for purposes of Section 16 of 
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, if, as a consequence of the 
Change in Control, (i) the Company becomes a subsidiary of another corporation 
and the Participant is not employed by the ultimate parent corporation or 
(ii) the Participant is employed by an entity the equity interests in which are 
not publicly traded); the assignment to the Participant of any duties or 
responsibilities which, in the Participant's reasonable judgment, are 
inconsistent with his status, title, position or responsibilities; or any 
removal of the Participant from or failure to reappoint or reelect him to any of 
such offices or positions, except in connection with the termination of his 
employment for Disability, Cause, as a result of his death or by the Participant 
other than for Good Reason; 
 
               (b)  a reduction in the Participant's annual base salary below 
the greater of the rate in effect (i) as of the date of the Change in Control or 
(ii) on any date following the Change in Control; 
 
               (c)  the relocation of the offices of the Company or Operating 
Unit at which the Participant is principally employed to a location more than 
twenty-five (25) miles from the location of such offices immediately prior to 
the Change in Control, or the Company's requiring the Participant to be based 
anywhere other than such offices, except to the extent the Participant was not 
previously assigned to a principal location and except for required travel on 
the Company's business to an extent substantially consistent with the 
Participant's business travel obligations at the time of the Change in Control; 
 
               (d)  the failure by the Company to pay to the Participant any 
portion of the Participant's current compensation or to pay to the Participant 
any portion of an installment of deferred compensation under any deferred 
compensation program of the Company in which the Participant participated, 
within seven (7) days of the date such compensation is due; 
 
               (e)  the failure by the Company to continue in effect any 
material compensation or benefit plan in which the Participant participated 
immediately prior to the Change in Control, unless an equitable arrangement 
(embodied in an ongoing substitute or alternative plan providing compensation 
and benefits not materially less favorable than those provided to the 
Participant immediately prior to the Change in Control) has been made with 
respect to such plan, or the failure by the Company to continue the 
Participant's participation therein (or in such substitute or alternative plan) 
on a basis not materially less favorable, both in terms of the amount of 
benefits provided and the level of the Participant's participation relative to 
other Participants, as existed immediately prior to the Change in Control; 
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               (f)  the failure by the Company to continue to provide the 
Participant with benefits substantially similar to those enjoyed by the 
Participant under any pension, life insurance or death benefit, medical, health 
and accident, or disability plan in which the Participant participated 
immediately prior to the Change in Control, the taking of any action by the 
Company which would directly or indirectly materially reduce any of such 
benefits, or the failure by the Company to provide the Participant with the 
number of paid vacation days to which the Participant is entitled by reason of 
agreement or understanding with the Company or on the basis of years of service 
with the Company in accordance with the normal vacation policy of the Company in 
effect immediately prior to the Change in Control; 
 
               (g)  the failure of the Company to obtain a satisfactory 
agreement from any successor, enforceable by the Participant, to assume and 
agree to honor and perform the Company's obligations under this Plan; or 
 
               (h)  any purported termination of the Participant's employment by 
the Company which is not effected pursuant to the requirements of Article V. 
 
          2.15 "Operating Unit" means any subsidiary, division, or other 
business unit of the Company or any Affiliate. 
 
          2.16 "Participant" means an Eligible Employee who meets the 
eligibility requirements of Article III. 
 
          2.17 "Plan" means the Cabot Corporation Senior Management Severance 
Protection Plan. 
 
          2.18 "Pro-Rata Bonus" means, with respect to the fiscal year in which 
a Participant's Termination Date occurs, an amount equal to the Bonus Amount 
multiplied by a fraction the numerator of which is the number of days that have 
elapsed in such fiscal year through the Termination Date and the denominator of 
which is 365. 
 
          2.19 "Short-Term Incentive Plan" means any bonus or incentive 
compensation plan, policy, program or other arrangement pursuant to which awards 
payable in cash are made to a Participant in respect of an award period of one 
year or less. 
 
          2.20 "Severance Benefit" means the benefit payable in accordance with 
Article IV of the Plan. 
 
          2.21 "Termination Date" means the date of termination of a 
Participant's employment as set forth in Article V. 
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                                    ARTICLE III 
 
                                    ELIGIBILITY 
 
          3.1  Participation.  For purposes of this Plan (i) each individual who 
is an Eligible Employee as of the Effective Date shall automatically be a 
Participant under this Plan as of the Effective Date, without further action and 
(ii) each individual who becomes an Eligible Employee after the Effective Date 
shall simultaneously become a Participant under this Plan as of the date he or 
she becomes an Eligible Employee, without further action. 
 
          3.2  Duration of Participation.  Any individual who is a Participant 
as of the occurrence of a Change in Control shall continue as a Participant 
until the date on which the Participant has received the entire amount of the 
Severance Benefit, if any, payable to such Participant under the Plan.  Any 
individual who, after becoming a Participant but before the occurrence of a 
Change in Control, (i) ceases to be an Eligible Employee (including ceasing to 
be an Eligible Employee by reason of an Excluded Termination), or (ii) is an 
Eligible Employee described in Section 2.12(ii) and not then also described in 
Section 2.12(i) and is removed from participation in the Plan by action of the 
Compensation Committee, shall cease to be a Participant under the Plan one year 
from the date such individual ceases to be an Eligible Employee in accordance 
with clause (i) of this sentence, or is removed from participation in the Plan 
in accordance with clause (ii) of this sentence, as the case may be. 
 
 
                                     ARTICLE IV 
 
                                 SEVERANCE BENEFITS 
 
          4.1  Right to Severance Benefit. 
 
               (a)  A Participant shall be entitled to receive from the Company 
a Severance Benefit in the amount provided in Section 4.2 if (i) a Change in 
Control has occurred and (ii) within the three (3) year period commencing on the 
date of the Change in Control, the Participant's employment with the Company and 
its Affiliates terminates for any reason other than (A) Cause, (B) Disability, 
(C) the Participant's death, (D) a termination initiated by the Participant 
without Good Reason or (E) an Excluded Termination.   
 
               (b)  Sale of Business or Assets.  If, following a Change in 
Control,  a Participant's employment with the Company and its Affiliates is 
terminated in connection with the sale, divestiture or other disposition of any 
Operating Unit (or part thereof), such termination shall not be a termination of 
employment of the Participant for purposes of the Plan and the Participant shall 
not be entitled to a Severance Benefit as a  
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result of such termination of employment, provided that (i) the Participant is 
offered employment by the Operating Unit or the acquiror of such Operating Unit 
(or part thereof), as appropriate, on terms and conditions that would not 
constitute "Good Reason" as defined in Section 2.14 (substituting the Operating 
Unit or acquiror for the Company, as appropriate) and (ii) the Company obtains 
an agreement from such acquiror or the Operating Unit, as appropriate, 
enforceable by the Participant, to provide severance pay and benefits (A) at 
least equal to the Severance Benefit and (B) payable upon a termination of the 
Participant's employment with the acquiror or the Operating Unit, as 
appropriate, and its Affiliates under the same circumstances as they would have 
been payable under this Plan substituting the acquiror or the Operating Unit, as 
appropriate, and its Affiliates for the Company and its Affiliates (such a 
termination of employment is herein referred to as an "Excluded Termination").  
In such circumstances, the Participant shall not be entitled to receive any 
Severance Benefit under this Plan whether or not the Participant becomes so 
employed.  This provision shall not be construed or interpreted so as to give 
any Participant an entitlement to any Severance Benefit under any circumstances 
prior to a Change in Control or in connection with any termination of employment 
prior to a Change in Control. 
 
          4.2  Amount of Severance Benefit.  If a Participant's employment is 
terminated in circumstances entitling him or her to a Severance Benefit as 
provided in Section 4.1, such Participant shall be entitled to the following: 
 
               (a)  the Company shall pay to the Participant all Accrued 
Compensation within ten (10) days after the Participant's Termination Date; 
 
               (b)  the Company shall pay to the Participant a Pro-Rata Bonus 
within thirty (30) days after the Participant's Termination Date; 
 
               (c)  the Company shall pay to the Participant, as severance pay 
and in lieu of any further salary for periods subsequent to the Participant's 
Termination Date, in a single payment (without any discount for accelerated 
payment, but subject to applicable withholding taxes) within thirty (30) days 
after the Participant's Termination Date, an amount in cash equal to two 
(2) times the sum of (A) the Participant's Base Salary and (B) the Participant's 
Bonus Amount; 
 
               (d)  for the two (2) year period commencing on the Participant's 
Termination Date (the "Continuation Period"), the Company shall at its expense 
(and without contribution by the Participant) continue on behalf of the 
Participant and his or her dependents and beneficiaries (i) medical, health, 
dental and prescription drug benefits, (ii) long-term disability coverage and 
(iii) life insurance and other death benefits coverage.  The coverages and 
benefits (including deductibles, if any) provided under this Section 4.2(d) 
during the Continuation Period shall be no less favorable to the Participant and 
his or her beneficiaries than the most favorable of such coverages and benefits  
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provided the Participant and his or her dependents during the 90-day period 
immediately preceding the Change in Control or as of any date following the 
Change in Control but preceding the Participant's Termination Date.  The 
obligation under this Section 4.2(d) with respect to the foregoing benefits 
shall be limited if the Participant obtains any such benefits pursuant to a 
subsequent employer's benefit plans, in which case the Company may reduce or 
eliminate the coverage and benefits it is required to provide the Participant 
hereunder as long as the aggregate coverages and benefits of the combined 
benefit plans is no less favorable to the Participant than the coverages and 
benefits required to be provided hereunder.  Any period during which benefits 
are continued pursuant to this Section 4.2(d) shall be considered to be in 
satisfaction of the Company's obligation to provide "continuation coverage" 
pursuant to Section 4980B of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and 
the period of coverage required under said Section 4980B shall be reduced by the 
period during which benefits were provided pursuant to this Section 4.2(d); and 
 
               (e)  the Company shall pay or reimburse the Participant for the 
costs, fees and expenses of outplacement assistance services (not to exceed 
fifteen percent (15%) of the Participant's Base Salary) provided by an 
outplacement agency selected by  the Participant.  
 
          4.3  Mitigation.  The Participant shall not be required to mitigate 
the amount of any payment or benefit provided for in this Plan by seeking other 
employment or otherwise and no such payment or benefit shall be offset or 
reduced by the amount of any compensation or benefits provided to the 
Participant in any subsequent employment, except to the extent provided in 
Section 4.2(d). 
 
          4.4  Other Benefits; Non-Exclusivity of Rights.  Nothing in this Plan 
shall prevent or limit the Participant's continuing or future participation in 
any benefit, bonus, incentive or other plan or program provided by the Company 
or any of its Affiliates and for which the Participant may qualify, nor shall 
anything herein limit or reduce such rights as any Participant may have under 
any other agreements with the Company or any of its Affiliates; provided, 
however, that to the extent the Participant may be entitled under any such other 
plan, program or agreement or pursuant to any applicable law or regulation to 
benefits of the types enumerated in Section 4.2, the provision of such benefits 
pursuant to such other plan, program or agreement or in satisfaction of such 
legal requirement shall count toward the Company's obligation to provide the 
enumerated benefits pursuant to this Plan, it being the intention of this Plan 
to provide the enumerated benefits at least at the level specified herein, but 
not to provide such benefits on a duplicative basis.  Without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, any benefits provided by the Company to a 
Participant pursuant to the Company's Key Employee Severance Protection Plan 
shall count toward the Company's obligations to provide similar benefits to such 
Participant pursuant to this Plan.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to limit, 
supersede or restrict any rights that any Participant may have to  
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accelerated vesting of any right or benefit under change in control provisions 
of any plan, program, agreement or otherwise. 
 
 
                                     ARTICLE V 
 
                             TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT 
 
          5.1  Termination by Company for Cause.  Following a Change in Control, 
any termination by the Company of a Participant's employment for Cause shall be 
in accordance with the following procedure.  First, a meeting of the Board of 
Directors of the Participant's employer shall be called and held for the purpose 
of determining whether there exists Cause for termination.  The Participant 
shall be given reasonable notice in writing of such meeting and of any facts and 
circumstances to be presented to such Board of Directors as constituting Cause, 
and shall have an opportunity, together with his or her counsel, to be heard 
before such Board of Directors.  If such Board of Directors, by resolution duly 
adopted by the affirmative vote of not less than three-quarters of the entire 
membership of such Board of Directors, shall find in good faith that Cause 
exists and that the Participant should be terminated for Cause, then such 
findings including the specific facts and circumstances found to constitute 
Cause (which shall not include any facts or circumstances not included in the 
written notice to the Participant of the meeting) shall be set forth in such 
resolution and a copy thereof furnished to the Participant, together with a 
written notice from the Company stating that the Participant is being terminated 
for Cause.  Such notice shall specify the effective date of such termination, 
which shall not be less than five (5) business days after the delivery to the 
Participant of such resolution and notice.  The findings of the Board of 
Directors of the Participant's employer shall have no presumptive weight in any 
action to contest the existence of Cause; and no facts or circumstances other 
than those set forth in the notice to the Participant of such Board of Directors 
meeting that were found by such Board of Directors to constitute Cause as 
provided herein may be relied upon by the Company thereafter as Cause for such 
termination.  Any termination of a Participant's employment by the Company other 
than in accordance with this Section 5.1 shall not be a termination for Cause. 
 
          5.2  Termination by Company for Disability.  Following a Change in 
Control, any termination by the Company of a Participant's employment for 
Disability shall be in accordance with the following procedure.  If as a result 
of Disability, a Participant shall have been absent from the performance of his 
or her duties with the Company for six (6) consecutive months, and the 
Participant is unable to return to his or her duties (on the same basis, 
full-time or part-time, as the case may be, as the Participant was working 
immediately prior to such absence) even with reasonable accommodations on the 
part of the Company, the Company may give the Participant written notice of a 
proposed termination of the Participant's employment for Disability.  Such 
notice shall  
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state that the Participant shall be terminated for Disability unless the 
Participant returns to the performance of his or her duties by a date stated in 
such notice, which shall be not less than thirty (30) days after the receipt of 
such notice by the Participant.  Such termination shall be effective as a 
termination for Disability if, and only if, the Company has made all reasonable 
accommodations required to permit the Participant to return to work and the 
Participant has not returned to the performance of his or her duties (on the 
same basis, full-time or part-time, as the case may be, as the Participant was 
working immediately prior to such absence) prior to the date therefor stated in 
such notice, in which case such date shall be the Termination Date. 
 
          5.3  Termination by Participant for Good Reason.  Following a Change 
in Control, a Participant having Good Reason shall have the right to terminate 
his or her employment without prior notice to the Company, and shall not be 
required to give any notice in order to perfect his or her rights under this 
Plan upon a termination for Good Reason, except as provided in this Section 5.3. 
Within thirty (30) days after receipt by the Participant of (a) a written 
request by the Company for a statement of any facts and circumstances relied 
upon by the Participant as constituting Good Reason for such termination, which 
request shall specifically refer to this Section and to Section 2.14, 
accompanied by (b) a copy of this Plan, the Participant shall (if the 
Participant has not already done so) provide the Company with a written 
statement setting forth in reasonable detail all facts and circumstances relied 
upon by the Participant as constituting Good Reason for such termination.  The 
Participant shall have the right to amend and supplement such statement (or any 
statement provided prior to such notice) until thirty (30) days after receipt of 
such request from the Company; and no facts or circumstances not set forth in 
such statement, as the same may be amended and supplemented as provided herein, 
may be relied upon by the Participant thereafter as Good Reason for such 
termination. 
 
          5.4  Other Terminations.  Any termination, other than for Cause, 
Disability or Good Reason, shall not require any particular procedures.  
 
 
                                     ARTICLE VI 
 
                          LIMITATION ON SEVERANCE BENEFITS 
 
          6.   Excise Tax Limitation. 
 
                    (a)  Notwithstanding anything contained in the Plan to the 
contrary, to the extent that the Severance Benefit provided to a Participant 
would be subject to the excise tax (the "Excise Tax") imposed under Section 4999 
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), the Severance 
Benefit shall be reduced (but not below zero) if and to the extent that a 
reduction in the Severance Benefit would result in the Participant retaining a 
larger amount, on an after-tax basis  
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(taking into account federal, state and local income taxes and the Excise Tax), 
than if the Participant received the entire amount of such Severance Benefit.  
Unless the Participant shall have given prior written notice specifying a 
different order to the Company to effectuate the foregoing, the Company shall 
reduce or eliminate the Severance Benefit, by first reducing or eliminating the 
portion of the Severance Benefit which is not payable in cash and then by 
reducing or eliminating cash payments, in each case in reverse order beginning 
with payments or benefits which are to be paid the farthest in time from the 
Determination (as hereinafter defined). 
 
                    (b)  The initial determination of whether the Severance 
Benefit shall be reduced as provided in Section 6(a) and the amount of such 
reduction shall be made at the Company's expense by an accounting firm selected 
by the Company from among the six largest accounting firms in the United States 
(the "Accounting Firm").  The Accounting Firm shall provide its determination 
(the "Determination"), together with detailed supporting calculations and 
documentation to the Company and the Participant within ten (10) days of the 
Termination Date.  If the Accounting Firm determines that no Excise Tax is 
payable by the Participant with respect to a Severance Benefit, it shall furnish 
the Participant with an opinion reasonably acceptable to the Participant that no 
Excise Tax will be imposed with respect to any such Severance Benefit, and such 
Determination shall be binding, final and conclusive upon the Company and the 
Participant. If the Accounting Firm determines that an Excise Tax would be 
payable, the Participant shall have the right to accept the Determination of the 
Accounting Firm as to the extent of the reduction, if any, pursuant to 
Section 6(a), or to have such Determination reviewed by an accounting firm 
selected by the Participant, at the expense of the Company, in which case the 
determination of such second accounting firm shall be binding, final and 
conclusive upon the Company and Participant. 
 
 
                                    ARTICLE VII 
 
                               SUCCESSORS TO COMPANY 
 
      7.1 Successors.  
 
          (a)  This Plan shall be binding upon the Company, its successors and 
assigns and the Company shall require any successor or assign to expressly 
assume and agree to perform this Plan in the same manner and to the same extent 
that the Company would be required to perform it if no such succession or 
assignment had taken place.  The term "Company" as used herein shall include 
such successors and assigns.  The term "successors and assigns" as used herein 
shall mean a corporation or other entity acquiring all or substantially all the 
assets and business of the Company whether by operation of law or otherwise. 
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          (b)  Neither this Plan nor any right or interest hereunder shall be 
assignable or transferable by a Participant or his or her beneficiaries or legal 
representatives, except by will or by the laws of descent and distribution.  
This Plan shall inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by a Participant's 
legal personal representative. 
 
 
                                    ARTICLE VIII 
 
                      DURATION, AMENDMENT AND PLAN TERMINATION 
 
          8.1  Duration.  This Plan shall continue in effect until terminated in 
accordance with Section 8.2.   
 
          8.2  Amendment and Termination.  Prior to a Change in Control, the 
Plan may be amended or modified in any respect, and may be terminated, by 
resolution adopted by two-thirds of the Board; provided, however, that no such 
amendment, modification or termination, which would adversely affect the 
benefits or protections hereunder of any individual who is a Participant as of 
the date such amendment, modification or termination is adopted shall be 
effective as it relates to such individual unless no Change in Control occurs 
within one year after such adoption, any such attempted amendment, modification 
or termination adopted within one year prior to a Change in Control being null 
and void ab initio as it relates to all individuals who were Participants prior 
to such adoption; provided, further, however, that the Plan may not be amended, 
modified or terminated, (i) at the request of a third party who has indicated an 
intention or taken steps to effect a Change in Control and who effectuates a 
Change in Control or (ii) otherwise in connection with, or in anticipation of, a 
Change in Control which actually occurs, any such attempted amendment, 
modification or termination being null and void ab initio.  From and after the 
occurrence of a Change in Control, the Plan (i) may not be amended or modified 
in any manner that would in any way adversely affect the benefits or protections 
provided to any individual hereunder and (ii) may not be terminated until the 
later of (a) the third anniversary of the Change in Control or (b) the date that 
all Participants who have become entitled to a Severance Benefit hereunder shall 
have received such payments in full.  
 
          8.3  Form of Amendment.  Any amendment or termination of the Plan 
shall be effected by a written instrument signed by a duly authorized officer or 
officers of the Company, certifying that the amendment or termination has been 
approved by the Board. 
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                                     ARTICLE IX 
 
                                   MISCELLANEOUS 
 
      9.1 Legal Fees and Expenses.  The Company shall pay all legal fees and 
related expenses (including the costs of experts, evidence and counsel) 
reasonably incurred by a Participant as they become due as a result of (a) the 
Participant's termination of employment (including all such fees and expenses, 
if any, incurred in contesting or disputing in good faith any such termination 
of employment) or (b) the Participant seeking to obtain or enforce any right or 
benefit provided by this Plan or by any other plan or arrangement maintained by 
the Company under which the Participant is or may be entitled to receive 
benefits upon or following his or her termination of employment; provided, 
however, that the circumstances set forth in clauses (a) and (b) occurred on or 
after a Change in Control. 
 
          9.2  Employment Status.  This Plan does not constitute a contract of 
employment or impose on the Company any obligation to retain any Participant as 
an employee or to change any employment policies of the Company. 
 
          9.3  Validity and Severability.  The invalidity or unenforceability of 
any provision of the Plan shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any 
other provision of the Plan, which shall remain in full force and effect, and 
any prohibition or unenforceability in any jurisdiction shall not invalidate or 
render unenforceable such provision in any other jurisdiction. 
 
          9.4  Settlement of Claims.  The Company's obligation to make the 
payments provided for in this Plan and otherwise to perform its obligations 
hereunder shall not be affected by any circumstances, including, without 
limitation, any set-off, counterclaim, defense, recoupment, or other right which 
the Company may have against a Participant or others. 
 
          9.5  Governing Law.  The validity, interpretation, construction and 
performance of the Plan shall in all respects be governed by the laws of the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts, without giving effect to the conflict of law 
principles thereof. 
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                                                                 Exhibit 10(b) 
                                           
                                 CABOT CORPORATION 
                       KEY EMPLOYEE SEVERANCE PROTECTION PLAN 
           
          WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the "Board") of Cabot Corporation,  
a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), recognizes that the threat of an  
unsolicited takeover or other change in control of the Company may occur  
which can result in significant distractions of its key personnel because of  
the uncertainties inherent in such a situation; and 
 
          WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is essential and in the  
best interest of the Company and its stockholders to be able to retain the  
services of its key personnel in the event of a threat of a change in control  
of the Company, and following any change in control, to ensure their  
continued dedication and efforts in any such event without undue concern for  
their personal financial and employment security. 
 
          NOW, THEREFORE, in order to fulfill the above purposes, the  
following plan has been developed and is hereby adopted. 
 
                                  ARTICLE I 
 
                            ESTABLISHMENT OF PLAN 
 
          As of the Effective Date, the Company hereby establishes the Cabot  
Corporation Key Employee Severance Protection Plan (the "Plan") as set forth  
in this document. 
 
                                     ARTICLE II 
 
                                    DEFINITIONS 
 
          As used herein, the following words and phrases shall have the  
following respective meanings unless the context clearly indicates otherwise. 
 
          2.1 "Accrued Compensation" means an amount which shall include all  
amounts earned, accrued or otherwise payable to a Participant as of the  
Participant's Termination Date but not paid as of such Termination Date  
including (i) base salary, (ii) reimbursement for reasonable and necessary  
expenses incurred by the Participant on behalf of the Company during the  
period ending on the Termination Date, (iii) vacation pay, and (iv) bonuses  
and incentive compensation. 
 



 
 
          2.2  "Affiliate" means, with respect to any person or entity, any  
entity, directly or indirectly, controlled by, controlling or under common  
control with such person or entity.   
 
          2.3  "Base Salary" means a Participant's annualized base salary  
(including any portion that the Participant may have elected to defer),  
calculated at the greater of the rate in effect (i) immediately prior to a  
Change in Control or (ii) as of the Participant's Termination Date.  
 
          2.4  "Board" means the Board of Directors of Cabot Corporation. 
 
          2.5  "Bonus Amount" means an amount equal to the greater of (A)  
Participant's target bonus amount (including any portion that the Participant  
may have elected to defer), if any, under all Short-Term Incentive Plans for  
the fiscal year in which the Change in Control occurs or the fiscal year in  
which the Participant's Termination Date occurs, whichever is greater or (B)  
the highest bonus amount paid or payable to the Participant (including any  
portion that the Participant may have elected to defer) under all Short-Term  
Incentive Plans in respect of any of the three fiscal years preceding the  
fiscal year in which the Change in Control occurs. 
 
          2.6  "Cause" means (a) the willful and continued refusal by the  
Participant to perform substantially his or her reasonably assigned duties  
with the Company (other than any such failure resulting from his or her  
physical or mental incapacity or any such actual or anticipated failure after  
the issuance of a Notice of Termination by the Participant for Good Reason)  
after a written demand for substantial performance is delivered to the  
Participant by the Company, which demand specifically identifies the manner  
in which the Company believes that the Participant has not substantially  
performed his or her duties, or (b) the willful engaging by the Participant  
in conduct which is demonstrably and materially injurious to the Company,  
monetarily or otherwise.  For purposes of this definition (i) no act, or  
failure to act, on the Participant's part shall be deemed "willful" unless  
done, or omitted to be done, by the Participant not in good faith and without  
reasonable belief that his or her action or omission was in the best interest  
of the Company and (ii) good faith errors in judgment by the Participant  
shall not constitute Cause or be considered in any determination of whether  
Cause exists. 
 
          2.7  "Change in Control" means: 
 
               (a)  An acquisition of any voting securities of the Company  
(the "Voting Securities") by any "Person" as the term person is used for  
purposes of Section 13(d) or 14(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as  
amended (the "Exchange Act"), immediately after which such Person has  
"Beneficial Ownership" (within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 promulgated under  
the Exchange Act) together with all affiliates and associates (as such terms  
are used in Rule 12b-2 of the General Rules and Regulations under the  
Exchange Act) of such person, directly or indirectly, of securities of the  
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Company representing thirty-five percent (35%) or more of the combined voting  
power of the Company's then outstanding Voting Securities; provided, however,  
in determining whether a Change in Control has occurred, Voting Securities  
which are acquired in a "Non-Control Acquisition" (as hereinafter defined)  
shall not constitute an acquisition which would cause a Change in Control.  A  
"Non-Control Acquisition" shall mean an acquisition (i) by an employee  
benefit plan (or a trust forming a part thereof) maintained (A) by the  
Company or (B) by any corporation or other Person of which a majority of its  
voting power or its voting equity securities or equity interest is owned,  
directly or indirectly, by the Company (for purposes of this definition, a  
"Subsidiary"), (ii) by the Company or its Subsidiaries or (iii) directly from  
the Company (A) by an underwriter in connection with an underwritten public  
offering or private placement, (B) of non-voting convertible debt or  
non-voting convertible preferred stock, in either case, until converted into  
Voting Securities or (C) by a Person who, in connection with such  
acquisition, enters into a standstill agreement with Company with a duration  
of at least two years and pursuant to which such Person agrees to vote the  
acquired securities on any matter either at the direction of the Board or in  
the same proportion as the Company's other stockholders vote on the matter;  
provided, however, that the expiration of the standstill agreement shall  
constitute an acquisition of the Voting Securities then Beneficially Owned by  
such Person. 
 
               (b)  During any period of two years or less beginning on or  
after January 1, 1998, individuals who at the beginning of such period are  
members of the Board (the "Incumbent Board"), cease for any reason to  
constitute a majority of the members of the Board; provided, however, that if  
the election, or nomination for election by the Company's common  
stockholders, of any new director (other than a director designated by a  
person who has entered into an agreement with the Company to effect a  
transaction described in clause (d) of this definition) was approved by a  
vote of at least two-thirds of the Incumbent Board, such new director shall,  
for purposes of this Plan, be considered as a member of the Incumbent Board;  
provided further, however, that no individual shall be considered a member of  
the Incumbent Board if such individual initially assumed office through  
either an actual or threatened "Election Contest" (as described in Rule  
14a-11 promulgated under the Exchange Act) or other actual or threatened  
solicitation of proxies or consents by or on behalf of a Person other than  
the Board (a "Proxy Contest") including by reason of any agreement intended  
to avoid or settle any Election Contest or Proxy Contest; or  
 
               (c)  At any duly conducted election of directors at a special  
or annual meeting of stockholders of the Company, (a) two (2) or more  
nominees who are both: (i) nominees of, and endorsed by, the Company and (ii)  
not employees of the Company or any Affiliate of the Company at the time of  
such election are not elected to serve as directors, and (b) any person not a  
nominee of, and endorsed by, the Company is elected to serve as a director of  
the Company. 
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               (d)  Approval by stockholders of the Company of: 
 
                    (i)  A merger, consolidation or reorganization involving  
          the Company, unless such merger, consolidation or reorganization is  
          a "Non-Control Transaction."  A "Non-Control Transaction" shall  
          mean a merger, consolidation or reorganization of the Company  
          where:  
 
                         (A)  the stockholders of the Company, immediately  
                     before such merger, consolidation or reorganization, own  
                     directly or indirectly immediately following such  
                     merger, consolidation or reorganization, at least  
                     sixty-five percent (65%) of the combined voting power of  
                     the outstanding voting securities of the corporation  
                     resulting from such merger or consolidation or  
                     reorganization (the "Surviving Corporation") in  
                     substantially the same proportion as their ownership of  
                     the Voting Securities immediately before such merger,  
                     consolidation or reorganization, 
 
                         (B)  the individuals who were members of the  
                     Incumbent Board immediately prior to the execution of  
                     the agreement providing for such merger, consolidation  
                     or reorganization constitute at least two-thirds of the  
                     members of the board of directors of the Surviving  
                     Corporation, or a corporation beneficially directly or  
                     indirectly owning a majority of the Voting Securities of  
                     the Surviving Corporation, and 
 
                         (C)  no Person other than (i) the Company, (ii) any  
                     Subsidiary, or (iii) any employee benefit plan (or any  
                     trust forming a part thereof) maintained by the Company,  
                     the Surviving Corporation, or any Subsidiary, acquires  
                     Beneficial Ownership of thirty-five percent (35%) or  
                     more of the combined voting power of the Surviving  
                     Corporation's then outstanding voting securities. 
 
                    (ii) A complete liquidation or dissolution of the  
Company; or 
 
                    (iii) An agreement for the sale or other disposition of  
          all or substantially all of the assets of the Company to any Person  
          (other than a transfer to a Subsidiary). 
 
          Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Change in Control shall not be  
deemed to occur solely because any Person (the "Subject Person") acquired  
Beneficial Ownership of more than the permitted amount of the then  
outstanding Voting Securities as a result of the acquisition of Voting  
Securities by the Company which, by reducing the number of Voting Securities  
then outstanding, increases the percentage of shares 
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Beneficially Owned by the Subject Person, provided that if a Change in  
Control would occur (but for the operation of this sentence) as a result of  
the acquisition of Voting Securities by the Company, and after such share  
acquisition by the Company, the Subject Person becomes the Beneficial Owner  
of any additional Voting Securities which increases the percentage of the  
then outstanding Voting Securities Beneficially Owned by the Subject Person,  
then a Change in Control shall occur. 
 
          Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, if the  
employment of a Participant is terminated (i) at the request of a third party  
who has indicated an intention or taken steps reasonably calculated to effect  
a Change in Control and who effectuates a Change in Control or (ii) otherwise  
in connection with, or in anticipation of, a Change in Control which actually  
occurs, then for purposes of this Plan the date of a Change in Control with  
respect to that Participant shall be deemed to be the date immediately prior  
to the Participant's Termination Date.  
 
          2.8  "Company" means Cabot Corporation, a Delaware corporation. 
 
          2.9  "Compensation Committee" means the Compensation Committee of  
the Board as such committee may be constituted from time to time. 
 
          2.10 "Disability" shall occur if, as a result of a Participant's  
physical or mental incapacity due to illness, accident or otherwise, a  
Participant shall be unable to perform his or her duties with the Company. 
 
          2.11 "Effective Date" means the date the Plan is approved by the  
Board or such other date as the Board shall designate in its resolution  
approving the Plan. 
 
          2.12 "EIP" means the Cabot Corporation 1996 Equity Incentive Plan  
and any subsequently adopted plan which has been approved by the stockholders  
of the Company and which provides equity-based incentives to key employees of  
the Company; provided, however, that no subsequently adopted plan which is  
qualified under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as  
amended, shall be included in this definition. 
 
          2.13 "Eligible Employee" means, as of any date, each employee of  
the Company or any Affiliate (i) who has been granted, within one year prior  
to such date,  an award under an EIP; (ii) who, at the time such employee was  
offered employment with the Company or Affiliate, was provided written notice  
from the Company to the effect he or she will be considered for participation  
in an EIP, provided that the duration of such eligibility under this clause  
(ii) shall be only from the employee's date of hire or notice (whichever  
occurs later) until the next annual grant of awards under an EIP; or (iii)  
who has been designated as an Eligible Employee by the Compensation Committee. 
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          2.14 "Excluded Termination" has the meaning ascribed to it in  
Section 4.1(b). 
 
          2.15 "Good Reason" means the occurrence after a Change in Control  
of any of the following events or conditions: 
 
               (a)  the assignment to the Participant of any duties  
inconsistent with the position with the Company that the Participant held  
immediately prior to the Change in Control, or a substantial adverse  
alteration in the nature or status of the Participant's responsibilities from  
those in effect immediately prior to the Change in Control; 
 
               (b)  a reduction in the Participant's annual base salary below  
the greater of the rate in effect (i) as of the date of the Change in Control  
or (ii) on any date following the Change in Control; 
 
               (c)  the relocation of the offices of the Company or Operating  
Unit at which the Participant is principally employed to a location more than  
twenty-five (25) miles from the location of such offices immediately prior to  
the Change in Control, or the Company's requiring the Participant to be based  
anywhere other than such offices, except to the extent the Participant was  
not previously assigned to a principal location and except for required  
travel on the Company's business to an extent substantially consistent with  
the Participant's business travel obligations at the time of the Change in  
Control; 
 
               (d)  the failure by the Company to pay to the Participant any  
portion of the Participant's current compensation or to pay to the  
Participant any portion of an installment of deferred compensation under any  
deferred compensation program of the Company in which the Participant  
participated, within seven (7) days of the date such compensation is due; 
 
               (e)  the failure by the Company to continue in effect any  
material compensation or benefit plan in which the Participant participated  
immediately prior to the Change in Control, unless an equitable arrangement  
(embodied in an ongoing substitute or alternative plan providing compensation  
and benefits not materially less favorable than those provided to the  
Participant immediately prior to the Change in Control) has been made with  
respect to such plan, or the failure by the Company to continue the  
Participant's participation therein (or in such substitute or alternative  
plan) on a basis not materially less favorable, both in terms of the amount  
of benefits provided and the level of the Participant's participation  
relative to other Participants, as existed immediately prior to the Change in  
Control; 
 
               (f)  the failure by the Company to continue to provide the  
Participant with benefits substantially similar to those enjoyed by the  
Participant under  
 
                                       6 
 



 
 
any pension, life insurance or death benefit, medical, health and accident,  
or disability plan in which the Participant participated immediately prior to  
the Change in Control, the taking of any action by the Company which would  
directly or indirectly materially reduce any of such benefits, or the failure  
by the Company to provide the Participant with the number of paid vacation  
days to which the Participant is entitled by reason of agreement or  
understanding with the Company or on the basis of years of service with the  
Company in accordance with the normal vacation policy of the Company in  
effect immediately prior to the Change in Control; 
 
               (g)  the failure of the Company to obtain a satisfactory  
agreement from any successor, enforceable by the Participant, to assume and  
agree to honor and perform the Company's obligations under this Plan; or 
 
               (h)  any purported termination of the Participant's employment  
by the Company which is not effected pursuant to the requirements of Article  
V. 
 
          2.16 "Operating Unit" means any subsidiary, division, or other  
business unit of the Company or any Affiliate. 
 
          2.17 "Participant" means an Eligible Employee who meets the  
eligibility requirements of Article III. 
 
          2.18 "Plan" means the Cabot Corporation Key Employee Severance  
Protection Plan. 
 
          2.19 "Pro-Rata Bonus" means, with respect to the fiscal year in  
which a Participant's Termination Date occurs, an amount equal to the Bonus  
Amount multiplied by a fraction the numerator of which is the number of days  
that have elapsed in such fiscal year through the Termination Date and the  
denominator of which is 365. 
 
          2.20 "Short-Term Incentive Plan" means any bonus or incentive  
compensation plan, policy, program or other arrangement pursuant to which  
awards payable in cash are made to a Participant in respect of an award  
period of one year or less. 
 
          2.21 "Severance Benefit" means the benefit payable in accordance  
with Article IV of the Plan. 
 
          2.22 "Termination Date" means the date of termination of a  
Participant's employment as set forth in Article V. 
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                                    ARTICLE III 
 
                                    ELIGIBILITY 
 
          3.1  Participation.  For purposes of this Plan (i) each individual  
who is an Eligible Employee as of the Effective Date shall automatically be a  
Participant under this Plan as of the Effective Date, without further action  
and (ii) each individual who becomes an Eligible Employee after the Effective  
Date shall simultaneously become a Participant under this Plan as of the date  
he or she becomes an Eligible Employee, without further action. 
 
          3.2  Duration of Participation.  Any individual who is a  
Participant as of the occurrence of a Change in Control shall continue as a  
Participant until the date on which the Participant has received the entire  
amount of the Severance Benefit, if any, payable to such Participant under  
the Plan.  Any individual who, after becoming a Participant but before the  
occurrence of a Change in Control, (i) ceases to be an Eligible Employee  
(including ceasing to be an Eligible Employee by reason of an Excluded  
Termination) or (ii) is removed from participation in the Plan by action of  
the Compensation Committee shall cease to be a Participant under the Plan one  
year from the date such individual ceases to be an Eligible Employee in  
accordance with clause (i) of this sentence, or is removed from participation  
in the Plan in accordance with clause (ii) of this sentence, as the case may  
be.   
 
                                     ARTICLE IV 
 
                                 SEVERANCE BENEFITS 
 
          4.1  Right to Severance Benefit. 
 
               (a)  A Participant shall be entitled to receive from the  
Company a Severance Benefit in the amount provided in Section 4.2 if (i) a  
Change in Control has occurred and (ii) within the three (3) year period  
commencing on the date of the Change in Control, the Participant's employment  
with the Company and its Affiliates terminates for any reason other than (A)  
Cause, (B) Disability, (C) the Participant's death, (D) a termination  
initiated by the Participant without Good Reason or (E) an Excluded  
Termination.   
 
               (b)  Sale of Business or Assets.  If, following a Change in  
Control,  a Participant's employment with the Company and its Affiliates is  
terminated in connection with the sale, divestiture or other disposition of  
any Operating Unit (or part thereof), such termination shall not be a  
termination of employment of the Participant for purposes of the Plan and the  
Participant shall not be entitled to a Severance Benefit as a result of such  
termination of employment, provided that (i) the Participant is offered  
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employment by the Operating Unit or the acquiror of such Operating Unit (or  
part thereof), as appropriate, on terms and conditions that would not  
constitute "Good Reason" as defined in Section 2.15 (substituting the  
Operating Unit or acquiror for the Company, as appropriate) and (ii) the  
Company obtains an agreement from such acquiror or the Operating Unit, as  
appropriate, enforceable by the Participant, to provide severance pay and  
benefits (A) at least equal to the Severance Benefit and (B) payable upon a  
termination of the Participant's employment with the acquiror or the  
Operating Unit, as appropriate, and its Affiliates under the same  
circumstances as they would have been payable under this Plan substituting  
the acquiror or the Operating Unit, as appropriate, and its Affiliates for  
the Company and its Affiliates (such a termination of employment is herein  
referred to as an "Excluded Termination").  In such circumstances, the  
Participant shall not be entitled to receive any Severance Benefit under this  
Plan whether or not the Participant becomes so employed. This provision shall  
not be construed or interpreted so as to give any Participant an entitlement  
to any Severance Benefit under any circumstances prior to a Change in Control  
or in connection with any termination of employment prior to a Change in  
Control. 
 
          4.2  Amount of Severance Benefit.  If a Participant's employment is  
terminated in circumstances entitling him or her to a Severance Benefit as  
provided in Section 4.1, such Participant shall be entitled to the following: 
 
               (a)  the Company shall pay to the Participant all Accrued  
Compensation within ten (10) days after the Participant's Termination Date; 
 
               (b)  the Company shall pay to the Participant a Pro-Rata Bonus  
within thirty (30) days after the Participant's Termination Date; 
 
               (c)  the Company shall pay to the Participant, as severance  
pay and in lieu of any further salary for periods subsequent to the  
Participant's Termination Date, in a single payment (without any discount for  
accelerated payment, but subject to applicable withholding taxes) within  
thirty (30) days after the Participant's Termination Date, an amount in cash  
equal to one (1) times the sum of (A) the Participant's Base Salary and (B)  
the Participant's Bonus Amount; 
 
               (d)  for the one (1) year period commencing on the  
Participant's Termination Date (the "Continuation Period"), the Company shall  
at its expense (and without contribution by the Participant) continue on  
behalf of the Participant and his or her dependents and beneficiaries (i)  
medical, health, dental and prescription drug benefits, (ii) long-term  
disability coverage and (iii) life insurance and other death benefits  
coverage.  The coverages and benefits (including deductibles, if any)  
provided under this Section 4.2(d) during the Continuation Period shall be no  
less favorable to the Participant and his or her beneficiaries than the most  
favorable of such coverages and benefits provided the Participant and his or  
her dependents during the 90-day period immediately  
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preceding the Change in Control or as of any date following the Change in  
Control but preceding the Participant's Termination Date.  The obligation  
under this Section 4.2(d) with respect to the foregoing benefits shall be  
limited if the Participant obtains any such benefits pursuant to a subsequent  
employer's benefit plans, in which case the Company may reduce or eliminate  
the coverage and benefits it is required to provide the Participant hereunder  
as long as the aggregate coverages and benefits of the combined benefit plans  
is no less favorable to the Participant than the coverages and benefits  
required to be provided hereunder.  Any period during which benefits are  
continued pursuant to this Section 4.2(d) shall be considered to be in  
satisfaction of the Company's obligation to provide "continuation coverage"  
pursuant to Section 4980B of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended,  
and the period of coverage required under said Section 4980B shall be reduced  
by the period during which benefits were provided pursuant to this Section  
4.2(d); and 
 
               (e)  the Company shall pay or reimburse the Participant for  
the costs, fees and expenses of outplacement assistance services (not to  
exceed fifteen percent (15%) of the Participant's Base Salary) provided by an  
outplacement agency selected by the Participant.  
 
          4.3  Mitigation.  The Participant shall not be required to mitigate  
the amount of any payment or benefit provided for in this Plan by seeking  
other employment or otherwise and no such payment or benefit shall be offset  
or reduced by the amount of any compensation or benefits provided to the  
Participant in any subsequent employment, except to the extent provided in  
Section 4.2(d). 
 
          4.4  Other Benefits; Non-Exclusivity of Rights.  Nothing in this  
Plan shall prevent or limit the Participant's continuing or future  
participation in any benefit, bonus, incentive or other plan or program  
provided by the Company or any of its Affiliates and for which the  
Participant may qualify, nor shall anything herein limit or reduce such  
rights as any Participant may have under any other agreements with the  
Company or any of its Affiliates; provided, however, that to the extent the  
Participant may be entitled under any such other plan, program or agreement  
or pursuant to any applicable law or regulation to benefits of the types  
enumerated in Section 4.2, the provision of such benefits pursuant to such  
other plan, program or agreement or in satisfaction of such legal requirement  
shall count toward the Company's obligation to provide the enumerated  
benefits pursuant to this Plan, it being the intention of this Plan to  
provide the enumerated benefits at least at the level specified herein, but  
not to provide such benefits on a duplicative basis.  Without limiting the  
generality of the foregoing, any benefits provided by the Company to a  
Participant pursuant to the Company's Senior Management Severance Protection  
Plan shall count toward the Company's obligations to provide similar benefits  
to such Participant pursuant to this Plan.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to  
limit, supersede or restrict any rights that any Participant may have to 
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accelerated vesting of any right or benefit under change in control  
provisions of any plan, program, agreement or otherwise. 
 
                                     ARTICLE V 
 
                             TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT 
 
          5.1  Termination by Company for Cause.  Following a Change of  
Control, any purported termination by the Company of a Participant's  
employment for Cause shall be communicated by written notice of termination  
to the Participant. Written notice of termination to the Participant shall  
include (i) the specific facts and circumstances which the Company asserts  
constitute Cause, (ii) the Participant's termination date, which date shall  
be not less than five (5) business days from the date the written notice of  
termination is given to the Participant, and (iii) a specific reference to  
Section 2.6 and to this Section of the Plan.  A copy of this Plan shall be  
delivered to the Participant with such notice of termination.  No facts or  
circumstances other than those set forth in the written notice of termination  
given to the Participant by the Company as the facts and circumstances  
constituting Cause may be relied upon by the Company thereafter as Cause for  
such termination.  Any termination of a Participant's employment by the  
Company other than in accordance with a written notice of termination as  
required by this Section 5.1 shall not be a termination for Cause. 
 
          5.2  Termination by Company for Disability.  Following a Change in  
Control, any termination by the Company of a Participant's employment for  
Disability shall be in accordance with the following procedure.  If as a  
result of Disability, a Participant shall have been absent from the  
performance of his or her duties with the Company for six (6) consecutive  
months, and the Participant is unable to return to his or her duties (on the  
same basis, full-time or part-time, as the case may be, as the Participant  
was working immediately prior to such absence) even with reasonable  
accommodations on the part of the Company, the Company may give the  
Participant written notice of a proposed termination of the Participant's  
employment for Disability.  Such notice shall state that the Participant  
shall be terminated for Disability unless the Participant returns to the  
performance of his or her duties by a date stated in such notice, which shall  
be not less than thirty (30) days after the receipt of such notice by the  
Participant.  Such termination shall be effective as a termination for  
Disability if, and only if, the Company has made all reasonable  
accommodations required to permit the Participant to return to work and the  
Participant has not returned to the performance of his or her duties (on the  
same basis, full-time or part-time, as the case may be, as the Participant  
was working immediately prior to such absence) prior to the date therefor  
stated in such notice, in which case such date shall be the Termination Date. 
 
          5.3  Termination by Participant for Good Reason.  Following a  
Change in Control, a Participant having Good Reason shall have the right to  
terminate his or her  
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employment without prior notice to the Company, and shall not be required to  
give any notice in order to perfect his or her rights under this Plan upon a  
termination for Good Reason, except as provided in this Section 5.3.  Within  
thirty (30) days after receipt by the Participant of (a) a written request by  
the Company for a statement of any facts and circumstances relied upon by the  
Participant as constituting Good Reason for such termination, which request  
shall specifically refer to this Section and to Section 2.15, accompanied by  
(b) a copy of this Plan, the Participant shall (if the Participant has not  
already done so) provide the Company with a written statement setting forth  
in reasonable detail all facts and circumstances relied upon by the  
Participant as constituting Good Reason for such termination.  The  
Participant shall have the right to amend and supplement such statement (or  
any statement provided prior to such notice) until thirty (30) days after  
receipt of such request from the Company; and no facts or circumstances not  
set forth in such statement, as the same may be amended and supplemented as  
provided herein, may be relied upon by the Participant thereafter as Good  
Reason for such termination. 
 
          5.4  Other Terminations.  Any termination, other than for Cause,  
Disability or Good Reason, shall not require any particular procedures.  
 
                                     ARTICLE VI 
 
                          LIMITATION ON SEVERANCE BENEFITS 
 
          6.   Excise Tax Limitation. 
 
               (a)  Notwithstanding anything contained in the Plan to the  
contrary, to the extent that the Severance Benefit provided to a Participant  
would be subject to the excise tax (the "Excise Tax") imposed under Section  
4999 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), the  
Severance Benefit shall be reduced (but not below zero) if and to the extent  
that a reduction in the Severance Benefit would result in the Participant  
retaining a larger amount, on an after-tax basis (taking into account  
federal, state and local income taxes and the Excise Tax), than if the  
Participant received the entire amount of such Severance Benefit.  Unless the  
Participant shall have given prior written notice specifying a different  
order to the Company to effectuate the foregoing, the Company shall reduce or  
eliminate the Severance Benefit, by first reducing or eliminating the portion  
of the Severance Benefit which is not payable in cash and then by reducing or  
eliminating cash payments, in each case in reverse order beginning with  
payments or benefits which are to be paid the farthest in time from the  
Determination (as hereinafter defined). 
 
               (b)  The initial determination of whether the Severance  
Benefit shall be reduced as provided in Section 6(a) and the amount of such  
reduction shall be made at the Company's expense by an accounting firm  
selected by the Company from  
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among the six largest accounting firms in the United States (the "Accounting  
Firm").  The Accounting Firm shall provide its determination (the  
"Determination"), together with detailed supporting calculations and  
documentation to the Company and the Participant within ten (10) days of the  
Termination Date.  If the Accounting Firm determines that no Excise Tax is  
payable by the Participant with respect to a Severance Benefit, it shall  
furnish the Participant with an opinion reasonably acceptable to the  
Participant that no Excise Tax will be imposed with respect to any such  
Severance Benefit, and such Determination shall be binding, final and  
conclusive upon the Company and the Participant.  If the Accounting Firm  
determines that an Excise Tax would be payable, the Participant shall have  
the right to accept the Determination of the Accounting Firm as to the extent  
of the reduction, if any, pursuant to Section 6(a), or to have such  
Determination reviewed by an accounting firm selected by the Participant, at  
the expense of the Company, in which case the determination of such second  
accounting firm shall be binding, final and conclusive upon the Company and  
Participant. 
 
                                 ARTICLE VII 
 
                            SUCCESSORS TO COMPANY 
 
          7.1 Successors.  
 
               (a)  This Plan shall be binding upon the Company, its  
successors and assigns and the Company shall require any successor or assign  
to expressly assume and agree to perform this Plan in the same manner and to  
the same extent that the Company would be required to perform it if no such  
succession or assignment had taken place.  The term "Company" as used herein  
shall include such successors and assigns.  The term "successors and assigns"  
as used herein shall mean a corporation or other entity acquiring all or  
substantially all the assets and business of the Company whether by operation  
of law or otherwise. 
 
               (b)  Neither this Plan nor any right or interest hereunder  
shall be assignable or transferable by a Participant or his or her  
beneficiaries or legal representatives, except by will or by the laws of  
descent and distribution. This Plan shall inure to the benefit of and be  
enforceable by a Participant's legal personal representative. 
 
                                       13 
 



 
 
                                    ARTICLE VIII 
 
                      DURATION, AMENDMENT AND PLAN TERMINATION 
 
          8.1  Duration.  This Plan shall continue in effect until terminated  
in accordance with Section 8.2.   
 
          8.2  Amendment and Termination.  Prior to a Change in Control, the  
Plan may be amended or modified in any respect, and may be terminated, by  
resolution adopted by two-thirds of the Board; provided, however, that no  
such amendment, modification or termination, which would adversely affect the  
benefits or protections hereunder of any individual who is a Participant as  
of the date such amendment, modification or termination is adopted shall be  
effective as it relates to such individual unless no Change in Control occurs  
within one year after such adoption, any such attempted amendment,  
modification or termination adopted within one year prior to a Change in  
Control being null and void ab initio as it relates to all individuals who  
were Participants prior to such adoption; provided, further, however, that  
the Plan may not be amended, modified or terminated, (i) at the request of a  
third party who has indicated an intention or taken steps to effect a Change  
in Control and who effectuates a Change in Control or (ii) otherwise in  
connection with, or in anticipation of, a Change in Control which actually  
occurs, any such attempted amendment, modification or termination being null  
and void ab initio.  From and after the occurrence of a Change in Control,  
the Plan (i) may not be amended or modified in any manner that would in any  
way adversely affect the benefits or protections provided to any individual  
hereunder and (ii) may not be terminated until the later of (a) the third  
anniversary of the Change in Control or (b) the date that all Participants  
who have become entitled to a Severance Benefit hereunder shall have received  
such payments in full.   
 
          8.3  Form of Amendment.  Any amendment or termination of the Plan  
shall be effected by a written instrument signed by a duly authorized officer  
or officers of the Company, certifying that the amendment or termination has  
been approved by the Board. 
 
                                     ARTICLE IX 
 
                                   MISCELLANEOUS 
 
          9.1 Legal Fees and Expenses.  The Company shall pay all legal fees  
and related expenses (including the costs of experts, evidence and counsel)  
reasonably incurred by a Participant as they become due as a result of (a)  
the Participant's termination of employment (including all such fees and  
expenses, if any, incurred in contesting or disputing in good faith any such  
termination of employment) or (b) the Participant seeking to obtain or  
enforce any right or benefit provided by this Plan or by  
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any other plan or arrangement maintained by the Company under which the  
Participant is or may be entitled to receive benefits upon or following his  
or her termination of employment; provided, however, that the circumstances  
set forth in clauses (a) and (b) occurred on or after a Change in Control. 
 
          9.2  Employment Status.  This Plan does not constitute a contract  
of employment or impose on the Company any obligation to retain any  
Participant as an employee or to change any employment policies of the  
Company. 
 
          9.3  Validity and Severability.  The invalidity or unenforceability  
of any provision of the Plan shall not affect the validity or enforceability  
of any other provision of the Plan, which shall remain in full force and  
effect, and any prohibition or unenforceability in any jurisdiction shall not  
invalidate or render unenforceable such provision in any other jurisdiction. 
 
          9.4  Settlement of Claims.  The Company's obligation to make the  
payments provided for in this Plan and otherwise to perform its obligations  
hereunder shall not be affected by any circumstances, including, without  
limitation, any set-off, counterclaim, defense, recoupment, or other right  
which the Company may have against a Participant or others. 
 
          9.5  Governing Law.  The validity, interpretation, construction and  
performance of the Plan shall in all respects be governed by the laws of the  
Commonwealth of Massachusetts, without giving effect to the conflict of law  
principles thereof. 
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                                                                      Exhibit 11 
  
                   CABOT CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 
  
               STATEMENT REGARDING COMPUTATION OF PER SHARE EARNINGS 
                 For the three month period ended December 31, 1997 
                   (Amounts in millions, except per share amounts) 
  
 
 
                                                                                                    BASIC      DILUTED 
                                                                                                  ---------  ----------- 
                                                                                                        
  
Shares of common stock outstanding at October 1, 1997, less treasury stock......................       69.5        69.5 
  
Plus net weighted shares of treasury stock purchased............................................       (1.0)       (1.0) 
  
Less contingently issuable shares...............................................................       (2.4)        -- 
  
Plus common stock equivalents: 
  
  Effect of convertible preferred stock conversion..............................................       --           6.0 
  
  Effect of equity incentive awards.............................................................       --           0.8 
                                                                                                  ---------       ----- 
  
Weighted average shares outstanding.............................................................       66.1        75.3 
                                                                                                  ---------       ----- 
                                                                                                  ---------       ----- 
  
Income applicable to common shares..............................................................  $    30.7   $    30.7 
  
Dividends on preferred stock....................................................................       --           0.8 
  
Preferred stock conversion compensation shortfall...............................................       --          (0.4) 
                                                                                                  ---------       ----- 
  
Earnings applicable to common shares............................................................  $    30.7   $    31.1 
                                                                                                  ---------       ----- 
                                                                                                  ---------       ----- 
  
Earnings per common share.......................................................................  $    0.46   $    0.41 
                                                                                                  ---------       ----- 
                                                                                                  ---------       ----- 
 
  
                                        



 
 
                                                                    Exhibit 12 
  
                CABOT CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 
  
    STATEMENT REGARDING COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES 
                     (Amounts in millions, except ratios) 
  
 
 
                                                            THREE MONTHS                    YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 
                                                                ENDED         -----------------------------------------------------
                                                          DECEMBER 31, 1997     1997       1996       1995       1994       1993 
                                                         -------------------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------
                                                                                                         
Earnings: 
  Pre-tax income from continuing operations............       $    45.3       $   117.0  $   279.8  $   256.0  $   118.3  $    67.9
  Distributed income of affiliated companies...........             2.0            10.4       11.2       11.7        5.6        6.0
  Add fixed charges: 
    Interest on indebtedness...........................            11.4            43.2       41.7       35.6       41.7       44.0
    Portion of rents representative of the interest 
     factor............................................             1.2             4.9        4.8        5.5        5.9        4.9
                                                                  -----       ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------
  Income as adjusted...................................       $    59.9       $   175.5  $   337.5  $   308.8  $   171.5  $   122.8
 
Fixed charges: 
  Interest on indebtedness.............................       $    11.4       $    43.2  $    41.7  $    35.6  $    41.7  $    44.0
  Capitalized interest.................................          --              --         --         --         --         -- 
  Portion of rents representative of the interest 
   factor..............................................             1.2             4.9        4.8        5.5        5.9        4.9
                                                                  -----       ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------
 
Total fixed charges....................................       $    12.6       $    48.1  $    46.5  $    41.1  $    47.6  $    48.9
 
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges.....................             4.8             3.6        7.3        7.5        3.6        2.5
                                                                  -----       ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------
                                                                  -----       ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------  ---------
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This schedule contains summary financial information extracted from the 
financial statements (unaudited) of Cabot Corporation for the three months 
ended December 31, 1997 and is qualified in its entirety by reference to 
such financial statements. 
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